THE STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

HILLSBOROUGH COUNTY PROBATE COURT

JULIE SHELTON, Trustee, of the Elizabeth M. Tamposi GST Exempt Trust and
the Elizabeth M. Tamposi Trust, both created under the
Samuel A. Tamposi Sr. 1992 Trust, and the Elizabeth M. Tamposi Trust created under
the Samuel A. Tamposi Sr. 1994 Irrevocable Trust, and ELIZABETH M. TAMPOSI
v
SAMUEL A. TAMPOSI, JR. and STEPHEN A. TAMPOSI, Individually and as
Investment Directors of the Elizabeth M. Tamposi GST Exempt Trust and the
Elizabeth M. Tamposi Trust, both created under the Samuel A. Tamposi Sr. 1992 Trust,
and the Elizabéeth M. Tamposi Trust created under the Samuel A. Tamposi Sr. 1994
~lIrrevocable Trust,-and as Directors of the Tamposi Companies -

. Case Number: 316-20}07—_5().-21'09'

 ORDER

This litigation c'on(-;ern's 'tl'-le'SamuleI A, Tamposi, Sr. 1992 Trust (the SAT, Sr.
Trust). it was instituted by Julie Shelton, trustee of the Elizabeth Tamposi Trusts (the
EMT Trust's),l and Elizabeth Tamposi, individu ally, against Samuel A Tamposi, Jr. and
Stepﬁen Tam posi; individually, and as investment direciors fﬁr the EMT Trusts and.
directors of the Tamposi Companies,’ .alleging breach of fiduciary duty. Samuel A.
Tamposi, Jr. and Stephen ITamposi deny any breach of duty, move for removal of Julie
Shelton as trustee of the EMT Trusts, and ask for enforcement of the in tefrorem clausé"
of the SAT, Sr. Trust through forfeiture of Elizabefh Tamposi's right, title and interest as

beneficiary under the EMT Trusts.

' Per order dated 10/15/2009 (Index #354) the court found that it did not have jurisdiction to decide claims
against the respondents as Directors of the Tamposi Companies.



The petitioners’ complaint is DISMISSED, and the respondents’ motions are

' GRANTED, consistent with the orders within.

|. TRUST PROVISIONS AND APPLICABLE LAW
A discussion ofthé relevant provisions of the SAT, Sr. Trust will assist, if it is not
essential, for contextual understanding of the controversy before the court.

- Samuel A. Tamposi, Sr. (Sam, Sr.) was a promineﬁt real estate developer ih
southérn New Hampshire. He had six chi!_drén: Sarhuel, Jr. (Sam, Jr.), Michael,
Elizabeth (Bettyj, Nicholas (Nick), Celina (Sally), and Stephen (Sieve). As part of his
estate plan',- he established the SAT, Sr. Trust on or about February 24, 1992. Itwas
designed to confer lifetime benefit to himself during his lifetime, and his children and
their issue after hi.s de;'.lth.l He namEd_Hi'n'l.s'e[f_trus.teé_, aﬁd Bank of America as |
successor tfuste‘e‘. |

Sam,-Sr. amended the trust several ﬁhes, The First'Ame'ndmeh‘t, in 'Fe'bruary
1994;_ eliminated the requireménf for a corporate trustee if he was unablé to serve. It
named David E. Tullylsu'cces'sor trustée.z_ The Secbnd Amendment, dated March 1994,

*3 as a substantial

granted authorization for the trustee to retain “real estate interests
part or all of the trust property, and appointed Sam, Jr. as investment director. The
Second Amendment was revoked in its entirety upon execution of and as part of the

Third Amendment in April 1994. The Third Amendment reaffirmed that the trustee may

retain “real estate interests” as a substantial part or all of the trust property, but this time -

% Three years after Sam, Sr.’s death, David Tulley resigned as successor trustee and on January 1, 1998,
Gerald Prunier accepted the position of trustee pursuant to Article Eleventh. Exhibit 1.4.

? Real estate inferests are: “Real estate and all legal or equitable interests in real estate, including all
interests in closely-held corporations and in general or limited partnerships that own interests in real
estate.” Samuel A. Tamposi, Sr. 1992 Trust, Article TENTH-A.



named sons Sam, Jr. and Steve, or the survivor of them, investment directors when
Sam, Sr. himself was no longer trustee. The Fourth Amendment, effective May 24,
\ 1995, prohibited the trustee from transferring any interest in the Boston Red Sox, a trust
asset, withouf written approval of the American League of Professional Baseball Clubs.
It also expl;essly confirmed all other provis.ions of tﬁe SAT, Sf. Trust, as earlier
amended. Much Iater, after Sam, Sr.’s death,-the trust was again amended under a
November 13, 2006 agreement signed by the beneficiaries of thé SAT, Sr. Tru;t
(“Settlement'Agreemént”) in resolution of longstandihg conflict between the investment
directors and certain beneficiaries. Son;te of these 'changes- to the trust WEre_ e'ntei'éd as
an order of this court on February 22, 2007.* Henlc:e, when reférenr';ed'af'ter_ November
13, 2006, the SAT, Sr. Trust was collectively comprised of the original instrument, the
first, third and fr;iur‘,th- amendments, certain provisions of the Settlerﬁent Agjreement.,. and
a February 22, 2'007;' 'coﬁrtﬁrdér.

| The SA_'I‘,' Sr. Trust specified that after Sam Sr.’s deatH, fh‘é tfust corpus was to
~ be divided into twelve separaté trusts for his children and their issue. 'EachIChiId and his
or her issué are beneficiaries of a trust containing assets exempt from the federal
generation skiphing transfer tax (“GST Exempt Trust”), and each child and hié or her
issue are beneﬁciaries Iof a frust having assets .that are not exempt (“Non-exempt

Trust").58 According to Article TENTH of the SAT, Sr. Trust, each of the twelve trusts

* The Settlement Agreement was not submitted in fofo for court approval. Nonetheless, the parties’
actions indicate that they accept the Settlement Agreement as a medification of the trust. See RSA 564-
B:1-111.

® For simplicity purposes going forward the respective trusts for Sam, Sr.’s children and their issue will
only reference the name of the child.

® As part of his estate plan, Samuel A Tamposi, Sr. also established the Samuel A. Tamposi, Sr. 1994
Irrevocable Trust and named David Tulley as the successor trustee of the trust. However, the remaining
assets from this trust were consolidated into each of the corresponding Non-exempt sibling sub-trusts



constitutes a separate and distinct trust, but may be combined and commingled with the
other trusts in a common fund for-convenience of administration. Thus, while legal title
to trust property may be held in the name of the SAT, Sr. Trust, equitable title rests with
the individual trusts.” For simplicity and clarity, these are referred to as the “eibling sub-
trusts” and those created for the benefit of Befty are variously called “the EMT Trusts”,
“the EMT GST Exempt Trust” or “the EMT Non-exempt Trust.”

- Under the unamended SAT, Sr. Trust instrument, one trustee was appointed for
the twelve sibling SUb-tmste. The t‘rL!stee was conférred discretion to distribute the ret
income and principal to or for the benefit of the benéficiaries—the six children of Sam
Sr.and their issue. The seﬁ’-trusts had different "asceftainable standards” for
distribution.® For the GST Exempt Trusts the trusteg is g:ven dlscrenon to dlstnbute net

Jlnceme and prlncrpal as necessary for thelr education and malntenance in health and

‘reasonable comfort, taklnq into consideration the income and cas_-h resources known to
the trustee to be available for sulch purposes from other sources.” Articie FIFTH.
(Emphasis added). For the Non-exempt Truets; the trustee is given discretion to
distribute to or for the beneficiaries such ﬁet income and principal as "ném‘eSsary for
their education and maintenance in health and reasonable comfort”, but withe'ut need to
take into account income and cash from other sources. Article SIXTH.

The ﬁ‘ust instrument expanded the statutory powers of the trustee to include:

investing in or holding property, including real property, even though the character or

pursuant to an agreement of the parties and order of this court dated January 3, 2008. n re: The Samuel
A Tamposi, Sr. 1992 Trust and The Samuel A Tamposi, Sr. 1994 irrevocable Trust. Case # 2006-2740.

7 The court is not asked and makes no ruling on the propriety of holding mie to the corpus in the name of
the SAT, Sr. Trust rather than the sibling sub-trusts.

® “Ascertainable standard” references wording in the trust limiting the trustee’s discretion to distribute
income or principal to a prescriptive capable of measurement derived from Internal Revenue Code
sections 2041 (b} (1) (A) or 2514 (c) (1). See RSA 564-B:1-103.



size of that investment would not be considered proper; holding securities or other
property in such a manner as the trustee deems best; and dividing or distributing trust
property “in undivided interests, in cash or in kind or partly in each, in pro-rata or non-
pro rata shares.” Article TENTH (a), (¢) and (e).

Article FOURTEEN contaihs a “_no contest”, or in ferrorem, clause. So far as is

now pertinent, it specifies:

If any person shall at any time commence or join in the prosecution of any

proceedings in any court or tribunal...to have ...this trust ...set aside or declared

invalid or to contest any part or all of the provisions included in. ..this trust...or to
cause or to induce any other person to6 do so, then and in that event such person
shall thereupon forfeit any and all right, title and interest in or to any portion of
this trust, and this trust shall be distributed in the same manner as would have
occurred had such person died prior to the date of execution of this trust.

The paragraph concludes with: “Nothing contained in this Article, h'owevér.'_shall
preclude any beneficiary from enforcing, by litigation or otherwise...the trustee’s duties
under this or any other trust.”

The Third Amendment confers certain fiduciary responisibilities on the investment
directors that are more Cc)mmonly vested in a trustee. They are given authority and
have the responsibility for the investment and management of the trust assets, while the
trustee is tasked with determining the needs of the beneficiaries and distributing
appropriate funds to them in accordance with the applicable ascertainable standard.
The amendment also gives the investment directors authority to control, finance, and
structure all real estate assets and operating entities; full authority to direct the retention
or sale of all trust assets; and to direct the purchase of property with cash principal.

Article TENTH-B (d), (€). They are further conferred license to act as managers or

directors of the entities held as trust property that might otherwise raise inherent or



potential conflicts of interest. Article TENTH-C. Sam, Sr. specifically instructed the
trustee to follow the directions and decisions of the investment directors regarding
investments, purchases, sales, real estate interests and operating entities. Article
TENTH-B (a) - (d).

The Third Amendment requires the investment directors to act in a fiduciary
capacity for the benefit of the trusts and to exercise “good faith and ordinary diligence.”
(Article TENT-H—B). This is a different and less stringent standard of fiduciary care
| (business standard) than that required of the trustée pursuant to RSA 564-B:9 (prud'ént
inves’tofsta‘ndard). Thé SAT, Sr. TrUst.ah_d all the sibling sub-trusts are "go;cremed by
New Hampshire law, specifically, the New Harh‘pshiré Uniform Trust Code, RSA 564-B
(NH UTIC)'._ | Though created prior o its enéc_tment,- the SAT, Sr. Trust is nbnétheleéS‘l
| - governed by NH UTC. Sée RSA 564-B:11-1 104; Tﬁis court h‘_eis -jUriédi.ctiéh'OVer tﬁe

parties and the subject matter pursuant to RSA 564-B:2-202 and 2-203.

. FACTS

Sam, S.r. died on May 25, 1995. His estate and trust property consisted of various
tenancies, business entities, limited partnerships, corporations and numerous parcelé of
real estate in New Hampshire and Florida, valued at apprﬁximately $20.5 million. Sam,
Sr’s business interests and real estate, some held individually, by the trusts, or by the
various business entities, are referred to under the consolidated term “Tamposi
Company” (or “Tamposi Companies™). Initially, Sam, Jr. and Steve assumed their given
roles as investment directors for all twelve sibling sub-trusts. They continue to currently

act as investment directors of the trusts for the benefit of Sam, Jr., Michael, Sally, and

¥



Steve. However, since November 13, 2006, they have served as investment directors
for only certéin assets held by the trusts for the benefit of Betty and Nick consistent with
the Settlement Agreement. Gerald Prunier serves as trustee of the trusts for the benefit
of Sam, Jr.,. Michael, Sally, and Steve. Eugene Van Loan is't_rustee of the trusts for the
benefit of Nick. Julie Shelton, co-petitioner in the case at bar, is trustee of: the trusts for
the benefit of Betty.
A. Prior Trust Controversies

The SAT, Sr. Trust was the subject of prior liigation in this court. A dispute had
arisen o&;er whether thé trustee was réqﬁired tfo corigent to the transfer of certailn a_s_sets
from-'the non—e_xeﬁnp’t trusts to the generation skipping tax-exernpt trusts. Betty and Nick
objected to the propOsed'tran_sfér. In January 2000, Sam,_Jr_. al-id'St'e've, és‘ ihvestm'eﬁ't
diredtors, and._éeréld‘ Prunier, trustee of fhe txiveive sub-trusts, filed a petitioﬁ-f(')r
declaratory judgment. Théy soﬁg ht a ruling from the court that the tmsté._e is réquired to
act in aocordanc:e_r with'thé Writte'n directions of the in_vest'rﬁent dil;éctdfs, .and neither has
nor incurs liability fér_s‘ci doing. In tﬁeir petition, the inveétme'nt directors and trustee
alleged that Betty and Nick had expressed interest ina possible “buy-out” or separation
of their beneficial interests in the trust property..9

In April 2000, Betty, Nick and their children submiﬂed fheir own petition for
declaratory judgment asking the court to make an interpretive determination that they
could participate in the January 2000 action without triggering the in terrorem clause.®
On October 2, 2000, the court (Cloutier, J.) ruled that so long as they did not attempt to

chalienge the validity of the trust or the authenticity of documents, but sought only to

® In re Samuel A Tamposi, Sr. 1992 Trust. Case number: 2000-178.
' Tamposi v Prunier, Trustee Case number: 2000-786.



uphold fiduciary standards under the trust and New Hampshire law, there would be no
violation. ‘Both of the declaratory judgment actions were dismissed without prejudice by
an agreed order of November 13, 2000.
The following September, Betty and Nick instituted another action against Sam,
Jr. and Steve, individually and as investment directors; Gerald Prunier, individuaily and
as trustee; and Daﬁid Tulley, individually and as trustee for the Samuel A. Tamposi, Sr.-
1994 Irrevocable Trust; this. time for breach of fiduciary duties.™ ‘Betty and Nick alleged
that the respondents'. had _féiled to account properly, had misused or fmproperly
conveyed frusf_ assets, ana had cdmmitfed several other breaches of duty. They
requested thlel court to_drd'er'ein accounting, su rchérge, removal of the trusteés and
ihvestnienfdir_éc‘:téré, _a'nd an award 5f aﬁorheys' fees and costs. Betty and Nick |
‘withdrew the cbmplaint by voluntary non-suit, vﬁthodt_’prej'udice, slightly Ie'sé thantwo *
months later. .- | - l- -
There legal matters stood untit Decem ber 2006, when Trustee Prunie.r of the

SAT, Sr. Trﬁst and Trustee Tully of the Samuel A. Tamposi, Sr 1994 Irevocable Trust
ﬁlt;d a joint petition asking the court to modify each trust.'® Between 2001 and 2006, the
underlying disagreements between Betty and Nick on the one side, and their siblings on
~ the other, continued. The parties privately engaged in mediation, and eventually, the
Settlernent Agreement was reached. [t called for rnergir;g the SAT, Sr. 1994 Trust for
the benefit of each child into his or her respective non-exempt sibling sub-trust; provided

that Betty and Nick could appoint his and her own trustee; and Sam, Jr. and Steve

" Elizabeth Tamposi and Nicholas Tamposi v Samuel A. Tamposi, Jr., Stephen A. Tamposi, individually
and as Investments Directors, Gerald Prunier, individually and as Trustee, and David Tulley, individualiy
" and as Trustee. Case number: 2001-1687.

2 In re: The Samuel A. Tamposi, Sr. 1992 Trust and the Samuel A. Tamposi Sr. 1994 Trust. Case
number 2001-1687, .



agreed to resign as investment directors over all but ten assets in Betty and Nick's sub-
trusts pending their sale or liquidation. The Settlement Agreement had no effect on the
organizational or legal structure and ownership of the asséts, which remained primarily
undivided minority interests in business entities and real estate. The merger of the
trusts was approved by the court on January 3, 2008. Chénges m;ade to the SAT, Sr.
Trust in accord with the Settlem_ent Ag'reer'nent were approved by the court on Feb'ruary
22, 2007. | | |
B. Current Litigation
| This action, alleging brea‘ch_,of fiduciary duties by the investment directors, was
filed in October 2007,.a mere eight months after ;che court ordered amendments to the
_truét occ-é'sioned by 'tﬁe Settlem'enf Agreement. |
On December 31, 2008, the apprbkiméte vélue' of the Tamiposi Company
- (including trust assets) was 5146 million. Exhibit 13.5." Averaged over the years 2007,
2008 and 2009, Betty has received distribultions-from EMT Tfuét‘s and her noh-trﬁlst
Tamposi Company assets of slightly_less t.han $1..5-millior.| 'ber year. See Exhibits 9.32;
9.32A. | | |
When the Settlement Agreement was signéd, Betty was married to Theodore
Goodlander (“Ted") and resided in Nashua, New Hampshire. Betty and Ted have three
children, Christina Goodlander, Margé_lret Goodlander and John Goodlander, who are
' beneﬂciariés of the trusts but not petitioners in this litigation.
In April 2005, Betty purchased a house and land on Governor’s Island in Gilford

for $1,795,000. By January 2007, she had commenced significant renovations and

™ Throughout the frial and throughout this order the exhibits are referred to in this short-hand form.
Exhibit 13.5 refers to Book 13, Document 5,



improvements to this property, eventﬁa!ty spénding more than $2.5 million over the
original purchase price. See Exhibits 2.11; 9.4; 11.13. Much of the expense was
incurred while this litigation was in progress.

On May 16,.200?, Ted filed for divorce seeking a share of Betty's property,
including assets of the EMT Trusts. The divorce court found that both Betty and Ted
had taken liberties with assets of their children. Betty was ordered to reimburse |
$320,000 to the child_ren;é qualified personal residence trust as well as accept
responsibility for additional unsecured debts of approximately $765,342. Exhib}t.s 11.93;
8.5. The divorce was highly acrimonious and expensive. The fiial decree divided the
parties’ assets. Befty was required to provide Ted Iwith spo‘usél support 0;‘ up-to |
$50,000 ye'érly (from the EMT Trust distributions) until such time as he accumulates
liquid assets of at leallst-$'1.5 'mil'llion.- Exhibjf 11.93. | | |
Betty has had a prominent career in government and education. S:he is cﬁrrently
a grraduaie studérit at Harvard Divinity School, has a Mais'{elr.;s degree from Harvard's
Kennedy School of Government, and has been on the board of trustees for Rivfe‘r _
College, NH University System, and New.England_ CoIIeQe. She was a state Iegié;lator
from 19?9 — 1986, then ran fdr U.S. Congress, was appointed as U.S. Aséistant
Secretary of State for Consular Affairs {1989-1992) and has béen a political
commentator on WMUR TV Channel 9. However, throughout this current litigation,
Betty has had no employment income. She has incurred enormous debt and expense
fro.m the divorce, home improvements, living expenses and this litigation. Beyond that,
she spent approximately $925,000 on the prior trust litigation and mediated negotiations

(2000 — 2006) which she wants reimbursed by her trustee. Exhibit 2.32.

10



Sam, Jr. is the President of the Tamposi Companies. He is the oldest of the
Tamposi siblings and worked wﬁh his father at the family business prior to the latter’s
death. He is involved in the day-to-day operation of the Tamposi Company—negotiating
real estate purchases, sales, and leases, and managing the myriad businesé entities of
which it is comlprised. Steve is a resident and manages the ongoing development and
maintenance of Citrus Hillé, Florida, while alsé working with Sam, Jr. in the overall
management of the Tamposi Compénies. Neither Sam, Jr. nor Steve receive:s any
compen'sation from the SAT, Sr. Tru;st or sibling sub—fms_ts for services as investrﬁeht
difectors. Their cornpen'satibn comes from their employment as managers and
directorspf the various Tamposi Companies. See e.g. Exhibits 4.1 4.2

in the Settlement Agfeement, Betty naméd her then attorney, Richafd Couser,
her n.ew trustee. While the stated effective date for the Settlement Agreemént was
November 13, 20086, 'the parties understood that implementation of all ifs_terms would
take time. They submitted petitions to the court for approva! of sOme_of the agreed |
modifications in February 2007 and in Déc‘emﬁer 2007. Regrettably, Attorney Couser
became very ill, and was rénde_r_ed unable to continue as trustee of the EMT Trusts.™ .
| He had not requested nor taken posses’éion of any of the trust assets. The Settlement
~ Agreement contained no provisions for the transition from Trustee Prunier to a new
trustee chosen by Betty. |

Aﬁomey Couser resigned as trustee of the EMT Trusts by letter dated May 18,
2007. Exhibit 2.28. Betty _theh began a search for a new trustee. She contacted her
iong—time friend, Julie Shelton, for assistance in identifying an appropriate trustee.

Shelton suggested that Betty contact Attorney Stephanie Denby of Chicago, whose law

* Attorney Couser passed away in September 2008 after a long battle with cancer.
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practice specializes in very high-end trusts and estate pianning, primarily servicing
clients with assets of $1 billion or maore. Be&y met with Attorney Denby in May 2007,
engaged Denby as attorﬁey for her trust, and interviewed four potential ihstitutional
trustees in the Chicago area. Exhibit 2.30. None of those institutions was willing to act
as trustee for the EMT Trusts because there was not sufficient cash flow assured to
compensate for their services. |

In June 2007, Attorney Denby met with Attorney David Barradale (attorney for
Trustee Geraid Prunier), Attorney Pam Newkirk (attorne-y fo.r Trustee Gerald Prunier),
and Attormey Eugene Vén Loan (Trustee for the trusts for the- benefit of Nick) to discuss
- the trénsitioh'proééSs for transferring assets from Trustée Prunier to Betty’s new {and,
as of yet, unnamed)trustee Exhibits 2.35; 2.36; 2. 38. Denby furtherlnformed |
Barradale that Betty had 5|gn|f|cant cash needs Exhibits 2 32; 2.35.

E\.fentuall_y, on August 10, 2007, Julie Shelton was chosen by Beﬂy to 'éenfe as
trustee of the EMT Trusts. Shelton accepted her appointrﬁent reluctantly. Sheis a
. litigation attbrney from Chicago, -IIli'nois. Shé acknowledges ﬁaving né prior experiencé
in and Iimited 'kndwledge.of trust administration; She has known Betty for more than 30
years Iand the Goodlander childfen for more than 10 years. Until some point during the
course of this litigation, she was unaware that the trust beneficiaries include issue now
living and later born during Beﬂy’s lifetime. Shelton relied on advice from Attorney
Denby for information about her role as trustee. She testimonially admitted that there
was no evidence that Sam, Jr. and Steve had mismanaged the EMT Trusts’ assets.

During a conference call on August 7, 2007, Betty informed the investment

directors and other family members that she had appointed her new trustee and asked

12



that the investment directors meet with the new trustee. Betty did not identify the new
trustee at that time. See Exhibit 2.52. On or about August 29, 2007, Sheiton sent a
letter to the investment directors informing them that she had accepted the position as
trustee of tﬁe EMT Trusts as of Auguét 10, 2007. She asked that they meet with her to
discuss Betty's need for increased cash flow and financial resources. Exhibit 2.61.
Betty earlier had emailed the_ investment directo'rs. requesting that she, Shelton, and
they meet in person. She suggested se\}eral possible meeting dates. Exhibit 2.52; see
also 2.72. Sam, Jr. agreed t6 meet and confirméd his availability_ for September 7,19 or
20", Exhibit 2.53. Stevé agreed to meet on those same dates, but expressed his
preference to remain in Florida and meet via conferénce'ball. Exhibits 2.54; 2.55. Later
in Septembéf, Steve suffered a back injury that impeded his ability to travel.” See
_ Exhibit 2.87. On August 22; 2007, Betty sent an email .t'o Shelton indicating their
“agenda” for this meeting Was “to talk about the implicafions of (Betty’s) divorce and a
buy out... that the red sox (sic) are an iSsue;..f’ and inquiring v_vhéthér Sam, Jr. and
Steve should be so info-rnied E)_(hi'bit'2.55. They were not apprised.

| In A’ugust and early September 2007, Betty and Shelton iﬁterviewed at least
~ three litigation attorneys in Boston, Massachusetts. They testified that they initially
contacted attorneys to discuss a malpréctic’:e action against Attorney Couser. This
related tq Betty's claim thét the attorney rﬁay not have appropriately represented her in
negotiating the Settlement Agreement, as well as other advice he provided unrelated to
this litigation. However, given that Betty and Shelton were discussing a buy-out ahd
issues regarding the Red Sox on or prior to August 22, 2007, it is reasonéble to infer

from their actions and the exhibits that their search for legal counsel included discussion
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of further Iitigaﬁon over the EMT Trusts. Exhibits 2.55; 2.56; 2.57. Itis notable that
contact, and at least one of these meetings with potential attorneys, occurred even
before Trustee Shelton introduced herself to the investment directors or the former
trustee. The petitioners obtained the same law firm to represent them both. Each
signed a fee agreerhent that required payment of a reduced hou rly fee and a
percentage of any “gross amount recovered.” Exhibit 2.89. Shelton testified that she
did not coﬁduct any cost!b_e'nefit analysis to determine whether proposed litigation would
benefit the beneficiaries. |

On September 7, 2007, Shelton sent a letter to the in\-xestmentdirectoré'aslking
them to provide ,lri'_er with $2 million wilthin. 7 days for the immediate cash rieeds of the
trust beneficiaﬁéSi 'E).chibit 2.73. The letter was not addressed or s'en."t to the former -
tru'stee,'Gérald Prunier. Atthe timé it was sent, Shelton.hlad not taken posseésidn of,
nor ha‘d sﬁe reviewéd and détermined the estimafed worth of the trust assets: .S‘he; also
had not taken into ac'COuht thé other income and resources of the beneﬁqiérieé at that
time."? Fﬁrtﬁe'r, the record cI:Ioles not shﬁw that Betty or her children had z;lny emergency
that required a cash payment, let alone $2 millioﬁ within 7 days; in fact, Betty ‘was then
cufrent on most of her financial obligations. What is of note, however, is that on that
same day, at 7:02 in the morning, Steve emailed Shelton from Florida a message
stating that Sam.- Jr. would be out of the country until September 18 starting the next
day; that he and Sam, Jr. would make themselves available for a meeting on
September 19 or S.eptember 20, aﬁer Sam, Jr.’s return; and suggesting, based on

concerns of economy, that the meeting be by telephone to “explore any issues that

"> The ascertainable standard of the EMT GST Exempt Trust requires that the trustee take into account
other income and cash resources of the beneficiaries. The EMT Non-exempt Trust does not have this

requirement,
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require our attention”, with any unresoived matters reserved for a later face to face
meeting. Exhibit 2.72. Shelton responded later that day from Chicago at 4:40 p.h‘:.,
informing that she had “never found telephone conferences to be as productive as face
to face meetings”; thet she felt it “far more productive, as well as more economical,
efficient and prudent for [them] to meet in person”; that a face to face meeting with her
\n;ras “paft of [his] responsibility as an investment advisor”; and that she would not agree
to a telephone cenferehce. Exhibﬁ 2.72. Given the one hour time difference between
Steve’s IocatiOn in Florida and Sheltoﬁ’s in lliinois, it is rea'sonable to deduce that
Steve’s email was available for recelpt at the start of Shelton’s workday, while Steve's
recelpt of Shelton s emali would have been near.or after the end of that workday, a
Friday. The “$2 ITIi“lOI'I w1th|n 7-days Ietter” was sent by Federal Express from Shelton
to Steve and Sam, Jr at an unspecified tlme on September 7. From the sequence of
events, itis reasonable to infer that Shelton knew Sam, Jr. would not receive the letter
until after the 7 days had explred; that Shelton’s letter was trlggered by Steve’s mormng |
email; and that it wes designed to bolster her insistence that the meeting be held “face
to face”. - |

When Trustee Shelton’s “request” was not satisfied and she had received no
other response, she followed-up with another letter September 14, 2008 demanding that
the Red Sox be sold witﬁ the resulting cash distributed immediately. Exhibit 2.77. Her
endeavors to at once inferview and retain litigation attomeys while seeking fo personally
meet with and receive an enormous financial distribution from the investment directors,

ensuing as it were on parallel tracks within the same or overlapping timeframes,
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persuades the court that her press for cash was unreasonable and not grounded in
good faith.

Sam, Jr. was in Sqotland on vécation and unaware of the September 7 letter until
his return on September 17, 2007. He testified that Sheiton’s request for funds was
unprecedented and that there had never been a request for a distribution of this
ma-gnitud-e or with such urgency frorh any family membér. Sa-m, Jr. further testified that
all family members v;fere awaré of the cash assets of the trusts and knew that the |
invéstment directors could not raise $2 million for one beneficiary iﬁ 7 days without

~doing substantial damage to other sibiing sub-trusts. Steve testified that I_h"e forwarded
the Iettér to their attorney, Robert Stein. Stein responded on behalf Iof._the investment |
~directors that' until settiement dﬁcument’s‘ wefe finalized and releases were signed by
‘Betty and her children, the invest;ﬂent directors would not meet WIth Shetton, nor
distribute requested funds. - Exhibit 2.76. |
After the lett'er_frOm Sheltbﬁ féque'sting $2 million in T'da)lzs and th.e re:sin_onse '
from Steiﬁ fhét she had “t_hé cart before the horse” in requésting a méeting prior to other
c_onditions. béing accomplished, there was a significant change in the tone of
com_muni(_:atibn between the parﬁés. The meeting between Shelton and the iﬁvéstment
d.irectors did not occur at that time. Exhibits 2.76; 2.80. When Betty learned this, she
e-mailed Shelton that “now we need to whack really really hard to get their [i.e. Sam, Jr.
and Steve's] attention.” Exhibit 2.81.

Barbara Tamposi, mother of the six siblings, attempted to defuse the developing

discord. She requested that Sam, Jr., Betty, and Steve schedule a meeting with Her

attorney, Daniel Sklar, to discuss their disagreements. Exhibits 2.85; 2.86; 2.90.
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Attorney Sklar confirmed a meeting date of Friday, September 28", but Betty then
insisted that she be represented by counsel at the meeting, which in turn prompted the
brothers to posit that their attorney also be present. Exhibit 2.92. The meeting never
occurred. [nstead, on September 26, 2007, Betty’s current attorney, Michael Weisman,
forwarded a proposat to Attorney Sklar for the investment directors tQ buy out all of |
Befty’s interests in the trust and all her individual assets in the Tamposi Companies for
more than $24 million. Exhibit 2.96. |

On September 28, 2007, Trﬁstee Shelton ana Betty filed a complaint against
Tamposi LLC, Ballinger P_ropérties LLC., Sam, Jr. and Steve, individually and as
inv‘estme'n't directfjrs‘, with the Suffolk Superior Court in Boston alleging breach of
ﬁduqiary duty and seeking an order c‘c':rn-pe_llinglthe respondenfs to exercis.e an option
for sale of the E_MT Trust's share of Tamposi LLC (‘the put’). Exhibit 6.2. "

Tamhosi LLC was a business entity owned primarily by the six sibling sub-trusts
and managed b? Baliingef Properties LLC, another famposi compéhy. Tamposi LLC's
only a_s'a'fet was 50 Shafres ﬁf New Englénd Sports V&_an‘mres, LLC, (formerly known as
FMBC LL_C)‘,Eua primary owner of the Bdsto‘n Red Sox. Témpoéi LLC Had the right aﬁd
option to-sell its ownership shares of the Red Sox through the put, which required New
England Sports Ventures, LLC to purchase those shares at a price determined after
appraisai and further negotiation. Exhibit 9.12. As relevant to this litigation, the put
allowed for Tamposi LLC to exercise its option to sell dufing the first three months of

2007 or 2008. Exhibits 9.12; 2.9. The put was not the only method for selling Tamposi

LLC shares, but was an option.
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The potential sale of Tamposi LLC had been a topic of discussion between Betty
and the investment directors even prior to the Setftlement Agreement. It was placed
squarely at issue in both the Massachusetts and this litigation. in the Seﬁlement
Agreement, Tamposi'LLC was one of the ten EMT Trusts’ assets that specifically
remained under the management of the investment directors.

The court accepts that sale of the Red Sox shares was important to the
petitioners because it would raise substantial cash that Would, lln turn, be transferred'to'
the EMT Trusts as a consequence of the provisions of Settlement Agreement, and |
- removed frofn rhanég’ement'by the..in\)estment directors.

' T_hoUgh u‘néxﬁress‘ed, the record supports a finding that sale of the Red Sox

- shares was contemplated W‘hen t'he-SettIerne'nt Agreerﬁén't was reached. On November
9, 2006 Attorney Couser 'corresﬁohdéd_ with Sam, Jr. stating that he understood | |
Tampoéi LLC wouid be sold in éaﬁy 2007. Exhibit 2.1. Attorney Stein replied thalt the
investment directofs' cqnber’n was rnaximizing return and the put would be exercised in- |
* either 2007 or 2008. Exhibit 2.2. On 'Jandary 22, 2007, Sam, Jr. notified fami.l'y
members that it was felt more advantageous fo not exercise the p-ut that year. Exhiblits '
2.9; 2.16.

The petitioners testified that they filed the litigation in Massachusetts to assure
that the EMT Trusts’ interests in Tamposi LLC would be sold during the subsequent let
period of January through March 2008.

| In late March 2008, Sam; Jr. and Steve, as managers of Ballinger Properties
LLC, notified the Red Sox of their intention to exercise the put. Exhibit 2.183. However,

instead of following the procedural mechanics of the put, the investment directors had
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an independent appraisal done and proceeded to negotiate terms for sale of the
Tamposi LLC shares."

Incredibly, and for reasons serving no purpose other than to render more difficult,
if not sabotage, the investment directors’ efforts to negﬁtiate a sale of thelRed Sox
shares, on February 1, 2008, on behalf of the petitioners, their attorney wrote the
attorney for the Red Sox of Betty’s objection to certain actions she expected Sam, Jr. to
take ar that he had taken on behalf of Tamposi LLC. Exhibit 11.141. The objection
cited several concerns. F'ifsf, Attorney'Weismaﬁ maintained that Major League
Baseball and the Red Sox had not approved the transfer of management of Témposi
LLC to Bél'lihger Properties LLC. He asserted that Betty had never been consulted
about or pleased with the Red ISo'x ihvestmént; but that it had been unilaterally “forced”
on the family by Sam, Jr. -Weisr-'nén- protested that Tarhnp'osi LLC Signed a restatement
of the Red Sox limited liability agreement representing that it Had made no transfefs in
violati_on of its terms—a false re‘p'reséntation according to the attorney because the
transfer of management to Ballinger had not been aplproved by Major League Baseball
and persbnal bankruptcy ﬁlings made by family merhbefs, as .individual-s, had not been
disclosed. He referenced a forged signatu re of Betty on-the Ballinger operating
| agreement—an issue that had beén raised prior to, and was preempted by the
Settiement Agreement, even were it true. Lastly, Weisman asserted that Sam, Jr.'s
execution of the proposed restated limited liability agreement “would be in derogation of
his fiduciary responsibilities to his clients [the petitioners] by making rebresentations and

warranties that are not truthful and by further restricting [their] ability to sell their

' The shares were eventually sold on May 13, 2008 at a price significantly greater than any prior sale.
The Tamposi LLC sale price is subject to a confidentiality agreement. The specific price has been sealed

by this court upon mutual request of the parties.
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interests in the Red Sox.” The letter came on the heels of a deposition of the Red Sox
CFO who Weisman questioned about the consequence to an owner found scalping
tickets, seemingly calculated to suggest that Sam, Jr., or the investment directors
collectively, may have done so. Sam, Jr. was aware that people he knew had been
contacted by what he believed to-be private investigators seeking “dirt”. It does not
appear that the Red Sox placed any credence on Weisman's assertions. The Red Sox
~ were, however, bothered by the expense incurred for representation in the
Massachusetts litigation initiated by the petitioners. In the negotiations fof'sale, they
postured for a discount of the $250, 000 to $300,000 it had incurrecl or would incur, and
indemnifi catlon for costs that mlght exceed the dlscount The Red Sox also sought to
negotiate a sale for the acquisition of Betty's undivided interest alone—a proposition
 Sam, Jr. declined, eeserﬁng-that it would disserve the other family members’ undivided
interests and plaoe him in a conflict p08|t|en asa f duciary. He felt that whatever price
was negotlated for Betty, even assumlng one mlght be reached that was acceptable or
paletable to her. would establlsh a value precedent for any later sale of_TampOSi
interests. Further, the Red Sox ultimately changed the ownership rulee of the limited
partnership in-lFebruary 2008, removing highly valuéd ownership privileges from those
having less than 50 shares, the number of total shares owned by Tamposi LLC. Those
perks greatly enhanced the attraction of, and hence value to, people having the kind of
money required to own part of a sport franchise. All of this, played out in front of the
Red Sox as it were, certainly did nothing to make the Tamposi sale negotiations easier
or more successful. Wholly apart from that, it constituted precisely the type of

decentralized and fragmented approach to management that Sam, Sr. sought to avoid
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under the Third Amendment. It lends great compliment to Sam, Jr. and Steve’s skills,
and the confidence entrusted in them by their father, that they were yet able to negotiate
a sale for the price they did. |

In June 2008, the petitioners learned that the sale of the Red Sox shares had
been completed. In the Massachusetfs case, the parties disputed whether the litigation
precipitated the sale or the sale would have occu-rf'ed, in any event, wifhout litigation.
Sam, Jr. and Steve testified that selling the Red Sox shares outside of the put conferred
greater financial benefit to the trust beneficiaries—contention the court finds credible.

Given active litigation in tﬁe Massachusetts coﬁrt, the New Hampshire Superior
Court and this court, the-investn‘lent directors did not immediately transfer the sale
proceeds to the trustee of the EMT Trusts. See Inde'li #114. After t.here were no
~ conflicting :court'ordérs and upon court instructiqh, the inve_strhents di'fectdrs transferred
the funds in December 2008. | .

Shelton and Betty iriitiéted this I'equify action under an original complaint dated
October 12, 2007. ltis limited to causes of action thaf.arose after the parties’
Settlement Agreement, as the agreement included a waiver and release of claims for all
causes of actidr;t'through its effective date. Exhibit 1.3.

At the time of Sam, Sr.’s death, the assets of the EMT Trusts continued to be _
predominantly undivided and minority interests in business entities, real estate
companies and tenancies in real estate. Sale of some of these assets by the trustee is
restricted by their governing agreements. The investment directors are managers or |
directors of many of thesé holdings. At the time of Sam, Sr.'s death, his estate and trﬁst

assets included approximately 400 parcels of real estate as well as multiple business
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entities. Exhibit 13.5. Sam, Jr. and Steve have used their considerable knowledge and
experience in the real estate business to sell or lease many of these parcels to generate
substantial cash and significantly increase the long-term portfolio value for the 12 sibling
sub-trusts. In distributing funds as managers or directors, Sam, Jr. and Steve provide
disbursements equally to the six sibliﬁg's.

Given the largely undivided and minority interests of the corpus, the petitioners
éllege that the trusts are unreasonably illiquid, limiting access to funds for distribution by
thé trl;lstee. By illustration, the petitioners complain that this illiquidity makes it difficult, if
not impossib'le, for the trustee to fund education of thé beneﬁciar’ies as purb()sed by the
trusts. In September 2007,-tﬁe petli'tioner's (through Betty’s accountant, Sue Edwards)
asked Sam, Jr.’s assistant to arrange_for. payment of $42,040 for John Gdodiande’r’s
Groton School, and $40,000 for Margaret Goo.dlandger’s (“Maggié”) Yale University,
tuitions. Exhibit 2.74. S_am,;_lr.. rEplied"that-their mother, Barbara Tampcsi. would not
pay school tuitions for Betty or ﬁ-er children. Exhibit 2.84. Barbara Tamposi had
historically often paid tuition for her grandchildren. Exhibit 2.201. She had ceased to do
so for Betty and Nick’s children in 2003 due to their ongoing disagreemehts with the
investment directors. Maggie’s tuition was due on October 5, 2007, under threat that
she would be involuntarily withdrawn by the school at the end of that fail’'s semester.
Exhibit 2.78. As a beneficiary of the EMT Trusts, at the discretion of the-trustee, trust
funds may be used for her education. Trustee Shelton testified that she was then
without any trust funds to pay the tuition.

Betty then took a different route for the Yale tuition payment. Hopeful that her

mother would relent and recommence her tradition of paying tuition, Betty transported
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Maggie from Yale to her grandmother’s house one day in late September 2007, so that
the latter could personally ask her grandmother for the tuition money.'” Barbara, aware
that Betty was at odds with the investment directors again, declined. Exhibits 2.84;
2.109.

Betty claims that she herself was unable to pay Maggie's tuition at that time. Yet,
the evidence shows that while the Yale tuition was due Betty pait_:l her own $6,750
tuition to Harvard, made a $7,150 down payment for a family weekend retfeat and gave
a donaﬁen to Georgetown University in the amount of $20,000 as an installment on a
five year pledge. See Exhibit 2.64. Ad:ditionally, she paid Cobb Hill Construction, the
contractor tﬁen working on her hOUse in Gilford, $258,239.04 in September and another
$75, DOO in October 2007. E)(hlblt 2.83.

Maggie was told by Sam, Jr. near the end of September that she would be
shortly receiving a dlstnbutlon_ from her own TamPo& assets that she could apply to the
tuition. Exhibit 2.109. She received those funds approximately October 9, 2007.
Nohethe]ess, Maggie proceeded to submit a Ioan_applicaﬂon to cover the tuition
expense. Exhibit 2.94. Betty co-signed the loan fully understanding that it could be
repaid within _thiﬁy (30) days ﬂithut interest or pena!ty. Exhibit 2.95. The loan was
approved on October 8, 2007, one day before Maggie’s account. was Tattened with the.

money from her own trust. Neither she nor Betty repaid the loan within the thirty (30)
day grace period.

Soon thereafter, on November 16, 2007, Betty submitted a loan application to
Sovereign Bank to secure funds for her continuing house renovations. On the loan

application, she neglected to disclose that a few weeks earlier she had co-signed

"7 Betty did not enter the home or participate in the meeting.
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Maggie’s tuition loan. Betty falsely reported that she had been self-employed at Citrus
Hills Construction for 21- years and had a monthly income from employment of
$93,876.66. She further misstated the value and her ownership of the property where\
she then resided in Nashua. Toa question asking, “Are you a party to any lawsuit?”
she answered “no”—disregarding that she had already initiated the litigation in
Massachusetts and New Hampshire. Exhibit 11.52. Betty’s effort to attribute these
falsehoods and the omission to the assistance rendered by others is not found credible,
especially given her level of e‘ducation, experience with legal matters and general
 sophistication. o

Prunier testlf' ed that he would have pald Maggie’s Yale turuon had it been :
requested of him, but he was . not contacted. At the tlme Maggie’s $40,000 tuntlon was
due the EMT Trusts assets rncluded cash accounts of apprommately $275 000. See
| Exhrbrts 2.133; 2. 146 Trustee Shelton had not yet taken possessmn of these assets.

On September 28, 2007, Trustee Shelton_ sent a request in writing to Sam, Jr. to
transfer the liq'uid assets of tne EMT Trusts to an account un'der her control in Chicego.
Exhibit 2.98. _. She dire'c‘ted this request to him as an investmient director, not to the
former trustee,_Ger.aId Prunier. lt is the former trustee wno maintains control of the
assets until transfer to the new trustee. RSA 564-B: 7-707. Sam Jr. told Shelton to
contact Prunier. Exhibit 2.99. Shelton then sent a letter to Prunier and his attorney,
David Barradale, on October 1, 2007 requesting the transfer of funds. Exhibits 2.102;
2.105. Barradale informed Shelton of his opinion that all trust assets must be .

transferred at the same time, a position the court finds advisable but not essential under
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the law. The lefter did not state that the petitioners and trust beneficiaries would be
réquired to sign a release prior to the transfer of trust funds. Exhibit 2.106.

The transfer of assets from Prunier to Shelton was further complicated and
delayed because Trustee Shelton requested that all EMT Trusts’ funds be deposited
into one account at a Chicago branch of Bank of America. Exhibit 2.102. The former
trustee, through counsel, informed Shelton that commingling EMT GST Exempt Trust
funds with EMT Non-exempt Trust funds could trigger transfer tax consequences.
Exhibit 2.111. On October 24,2007, Shelton provided the former trustee with separate
bank account numbers for transfer of the EMT GST Exembt Trust and EMT Non-
exempt Trust. Exhibit 2.123. On October 30, 2007, Shelton received .$239,259.6_2 cééh
from the EMT GST Exempt Trust account. Exhibit 2133 On November 6,and 8,
2007, Attorney Shelton received $‘II8,'_'2'-32.I39 cash from the GST Nc')n;éx_empt Trust.
Exhibit 2.146. The non-cash assets, including e‘ql;xi_table title to real estate and
b-usiness entities, were transferred shortly thereafter. The t_rusfee transition was
aCcohwplished withiﬁ éppro)cimately two months of the date that new trustee Shelton
info.rr_ned former trustee Prunier of her assuming office.

Throughout their testimbny,_ as well as that of Attorney Denby, the petitioners
complained that the investment directors could not or would not provide a sufﬁcientlyr
accurate projection of the annual distributions. Attorney Denby testified that in June
2007, she was informed that Beity énd her family could expect $22,000 per month from
the EMT Trusts and non-trust assets—an amount Betty considered insufficient to

support her living, litigation and other expenses. Exhibit 2.36. The distribution actually
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received ovef the years has been substantially greater than $22,000 per month, a fact
that had to be well known by Betty, if not by her trust attorney and trustee.

The petitioners are seeking surcharge, removal of investment directors and
“decoupling” Betty's trusts’ assets from those of the sub-trusts of other family members.
By decoupling, the petitioners mean that all of the EMT Trusts assets should be
purchased by Sam, Jr. and Steve, individually 6r as investment-dfrector’s on behalf of
the remaining sibling sub-trusts, for separate investment and management by Betty’s
chosen trustee for the EMT Trusts. |

~ The respondents argue that decoupling is Co‘n'trary to Sam, Sr.’s intent as setilor.
They ®mp[ain that Betty has been tryihg to force'_ a bqY-out or severance of her
interests from the rest of the farﬁi[y trusts for manyyears. They preéented testimony by
Aftorhey Alah Reische, S.am, Sr.’s trust and estate planning 'attorn.éy, who stated that he
héd personally met with Betty and sp(')ken with her on the phoné‘ in 1994 concerhing her
father's determination that family'mém’bgré be treated equélly 'and that the family
businesses éohtinue after his death. Exhibit 11 97 Sally testified that there were-twd
meetings—one in 1994 and one in 1995—at which Sam, Sr. specifically informed all his
children about his trusts and his intention that Sam, Jr. and Steve be in 'charge of the
Tarﬁposi Companies. Sally elxpressly recalled that Sam, Sr. fold the six siblings that
this was a gift and they could take it or walk away. He informed the family that he Ihad
provisions in the trust to enforce this. Sally further testified that Beftty was adamant ih
her objection to Sam, Jr. and Steve having charge of the family business. Sally stated
Betty later misrepresented to Sam, Sr. that Sally also objected, and that this near;y

caused a rift between Sally and her father. Betty testified that she had no recollection of
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the family meetings regarding the trust or her subsequent meeting with Attorney
Reische. The court disbelieves that Betty would have no recollection of such significant
and momentous occurrences touching her financial self-interests—interests that have
beer; at the fore ever since.

The réspondents request that Shelton be removed as trustee based on helr
inexperience, wasting of asséts by bringing this litigation, and acting as an agent for but
one of multiple beneﬁcia'riés.

The case was presented over the course of a pbtracted trial conducted between
November 30, 2009 and January 22, 2010. The parties an‘d- numérous expert and lay
witnesses testified. Some 556 exhibits (many multi-page to voluiminous)'® were
~ submitted and/or adfnitted'into évidence, as well as ﬁndihgs of fact, ru'lir'_ng'ls of law, an“d '

memoranda.. All have been carefully reviewed and considered by the court.

lll. RULINGS
A. Breaches of Fiduciary Duty |

(1) Failure to Acknowledge Res gecti\}e Roles of Trustee and Investment

Directors

The petitioners allege that the investment directors have breached their fiduciary
duty by fgil-ing' to acknowledge the appropriate role of the trustee. Amended Complaint
Count 1a. Here lies the fundamental dispute before the court. The petitioners argue

that Trustee Shelton has sole responsibility and authority to determine appropriate

_ ® By way of example only, Exhibit 2.121 contains 183 pages, and Volume 3 contains six exhibits each
well over 100 pages.
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distributions from the EMT Trusts; and that the investment directors’ responsibility is to
provide funds when and in the amount requested by the trustee. |

Under RSA 564-8:1-105, the powers and duties of the frustee and investment
directors are determined by the trust instrument. The Third Amendment sefs up a
bifurcated system of fiduciaries, a trustee and two investmeht directors, for the 12
sibling sub-trusts. The named investment directors,'® Sam, Jr. and Steve, are given
authority to make decisions about-in\festing, selling or rétaining trust assets. Article
TENTH-B (c), (e). The trustee is expressly Qfohibited.from making any décisions about
the investment or sale of tfust assets, and in the parlance of RSA 564-B:7-71 1, the
trustee is an “excluded ﬁduciéfy" with reépect to investment and management of trust

‘assets.? Conversely, according to Atticle TENTH, fhé trustee retains 'fhe au'thority-and

 discretion to determine the amo.unt and timing of distributicins; to the beneficiaries, and

| the investment d-ir'ectofs are -"excl’uded fiduciaries” regarding distributions to
beneficiaries.

The petitioners maintain that it was entirely appropriate for Trustee Shelton to
Irequest $2 million to be péid within 7 days, and the investment directors should have
complied without further questioning. They offered testimony of John Langbein in
support of this argument. Langbein is a.'professor at Yale Law School, served on the
committee that drafted the Uniform Trust Code (enacted in NH as RSA 564-B) and was

primary draftsman of the Prudent Investor's Act (enacted in New Hampshire as RSA

' The Samuel A Tamposi, Sr. 1992 Trust pre-dated the enactment of the New Hampshire Uniform Trust
Code, RSA 564-B. The role of Investment Directors described in the trust instrument is analogous to
what is described in the NH UTC as a Trust Advisor. See RSA 564-B: 12-1201(2)(10),{13), and (b).

2 vExcluded fiduciary" means any trustee, trust advisor, or trust protector to the extent that, under the
terms of the trust, an agreement of the qualified beneficiaries, or court order, (i) the frustee, trust advisor,
or trust protector is excluded from exercising a power, or is relieved of a duty, and (ji) the power or duty is
granted or reserved to another person. RSA 564-B:1-103(24).
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564-8:9). After review of the SAT, Sr. Trust, it is his view that the trustee has the
authority to instruct the investment directors to make funds available for her distribution.
Langbein bases this conclusion on the trustee's discretionary power to distribute
principal and income from the trust. He stated that the investment function of a trust is
always su bordinafe to distribution and that the investment directors are “service
providers” to the trustee. Langbein admitted that his ahalysis was premised on, and
delimited by, documents provided by the petitioners’ counsel. He concluded that the
investment directors breached their duties by refusing Ito'consult with She_ltdn and
insisting on .'réléases and peréonal finén'cial information from the beneficiaries. He
further stated his opinion that th'e' investment directors breached a duty to maintain frust
investments in a sufﬁciéntlf liquid and diverse form that the trustee might access funds -
as needed. | . | |

- The respondents and intewéﬁofs prese'ﬁted rebuftal expert testimony about the
rela.tionship of the trustee tb the investment directors. Jeffrey Coopér, law professor at
" Quinnipiac Univérsity School of Law, referenced the SAT, Sr. Trust’s having hamed two
specific individuals as investment directors, indicating that the settlor had singular
confidence in their specialized knowledg_e and eﬁperﬁse. Hé proﬁe@d that the trust
telegraphs Sam, Sr.’s em phasis' on real estate and the continuation. of his business.
Cooper bpined that the trustee may make requests of the investment directors for
distribution of funds, but the investment di fectors have the reciprocal right to refuse.
Charles Rounds, law school professor at Suffolk University School of Law, likewise
commented that the trustee has no authority to give directions to the investment

directors. Further he stated that the investment directors have the right and duty to
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monitor the trustee’s actions if they know or should know that the trustee is breaching
fiduciary duties. |

Although infonﬁativé, the expert testimony is not crucial to a decision on this |
issue. The SAT, Sr. Trust expresses Sam, Sr.'s unambiguous intent in distinguishing
the rofes of trustee and investment directors. The NH UTC is clear that the terms of the
trust control the relationship between fiduciaries. See RSA 564-B:12-1201 — 12-1205.

In New Hampshire, the intent of the settlor is the sovereign guide in interpreting or

construing a trust. See Peéslee v Rounds 77 N.H. 544, 545 (1915). The settlof"s intent

governs unless "thaf_ intent is contrary to statute or public policy.” Bartlett v Dumaine
128 N.H. 4‘97,- 504 (1 986). Sém, Sr. COnferfed on Sam, Jr. and Steve 'unjequ_ivocal
authdn’ty to make iHVEstm_ent decisions and rendered thei; decisions neither reviewable
nor reversible by the trustee. Sam, Jr. and Steve elected to retain and further invest
trust assets in c]osely—ﬁeld business entities and real esfate‘ enterprises. Their father
 specifically authorized 'suc'h"retention and invéstment_in Article TENTH-A knowing that
some or ma.ny of these h’dldings are or wOu_id be encumbered by sale-related
restrictions or covenants under ownershfp agreemenfs. They are appropriate
investménts according to the trust provisions and are not contrary to statute or public
policy. | .

 The petitioners attempt to buttress their position by placing focus on the EMT
Trusts’ provisions empowering the trustee to distribute principal regardless of the
existence or amount of income available. Thlat the trust instrument grants the trustee
authority to distribute principal and income is not a compelling argument for enabling the

trustee to issue mandates to or superintend the investment directors. The investment
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directors make distributions to the frustees that include income from investment assets
as well as proceeds from their sale. When cash is distributed to the sub-trusts, it may
be retained or distributed to the beneficiaries, in the discretion of the trustee. The court
has taken note that, as of June 2009, the trusts of Betty’s five siblings all had significant
cash assets. See.Exhibit 3.6 pp. 89-94.

The Second Amendment and Third Amendment int}oduced the concept of
investment directors and limited the powers and dutiés of the trustee. The trustee is
relegated to a ministerial role as to investments and is required to follow thé direc_tions
'of the investment directors. R.ead in its enti réty, the trust makes clear that Sar':n, Sr.
reposed special confidence in Sa'n;l,-.Jr. and Steve’s-ability to run the Tarnposi '
Companies and make relevant ﬁna‘nciéi decisions.. To whatever extent there is
perceived ambiguity beﬁv‘éen the poweré of the trustee, as. stated in Article F'I#TH (é)‘
and SIXTH (é), and the investméni directors under Article TEN TH-B, the coLlrt rules that -
the later drafted Article TENTH—_B, inclusive of both tru'stées’ and in_.v.'estment directors,
controls.

The terms of the trust granf the investment directors authdrity to retain, sell and
purchase investments. They have no duty to make assets available at the request or
demand of the trustee above and beyond what would be necessary to provide for the
beneficiaries’ education and maintenance in health and reasonable cﬁmfort.

The petitioners argue that the respondents’ actions impaired the dominant
purpose of the EMT Trusts to benéefit the beneficiaries, by denying the trustee unfettered
access to all of the trust assets. The court recognizes that a trust may have multiple

purposes, including, for example, to: provide income to the beneficiaries, minimize
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taxes, provide protection from creditors, maintain a family business, and provide long-
term asset growth for multiple generations of ber_ieﬁciaries. The SAT, Sr. Trust was |
created to further all these purposes. The investment directors have been loyal tQ the
trust purposes and their actions have greatly enhanced the benefits received by the
beneficiaries. The inability of the trustee to access all of the trust assets is a direct
consequence of Sam, Sr.'s trust scheme. -,

Trustee Shelton has no authority to direct retention or sale of assets and no duty
to review the actions of the investment directors in making invéstmeﬁtldecisions. See
RSA 56,4-—.8:;12-.1 204. The investment diréctors have iﬁvested trust p;ro perty in assets
that provide sub_stahtial__incomé to the beneficiaries as well as signiﬁc_ént long-term

growth; and have not breached their fiduciary duties in so doing.

(2) Eailure to Ahprobri atel\(' In\}éét Assets to Assure Sufficient Liquidity

 lliquidity and Non-diversity - | -' |

| | The petitionéi's argue that the respondents have breached their fiduciary duty by
failing to apprbpﬁétely invest trust asséts to assure sufficient liquidity. Amended |
Complaint Count 1b. They argue that the respdndents have overly invested in |
undivided minority interests in real estate and business entities. They rely on the
testimony of Professor Langbein, who stated that the investment directors ha.ve a
cont]nuing.duty to diversify trust assets to afford sufficient liquidity to meet the
reasonable and foreseeable distribution requests of the trustee. Langbein indicated that
it would not benefit the beneficiaries to hold assets that were illiquid or undiversified. He

offered that the EMT Trusts contained more real estate interests than is appropriate.

32



The respondents counter that Betty is estopped from asserting this argument by
the Settlement Agreement. When it was signed, the assets of the twelve sibling sub-
trusts were held primarily as undivided, and often minority interests in real estate and
business entities. The agreement did not change the composition of the EMT Trusts”
assets, ndr include any requirement that the assets be made more diverse or more
liquid. | | |

| The SAT, Sr. Trust alters or eliminates provisions of the prudent investor rule that
would otherwisé disallow the investment in under-diversified assets, and holds the
investment director's to a lesser standard of care than the trustee. Sam, Sr explicitly
deemed real estate a proper investment, even |f it cumulatlvely constituted a
predominant portlon or all of the trust prOperty SAT, Sr. Trust Article TENTH-A The
investment dlrectonjs are held to the business standard of ‘good faith and ordmary :
diligence” (SAT, Sr. Trust Article '.I'EN_TH-B)' rather t_haﬁ the default standard of

| “reasonable care, skill, and c'a.!;lt.i.o-h" in the NH UTC. RSA 564-B:9-902(a) (Prudent
Investor Rule).?' These provisions lead the court to conclude that Sam, Sr.’s intent was
to allow the investment direcltor,s to retain undivided real estate interests as long as they
determined, in their good business judgment, that it was appropriate.

RSA 564-B:9-903 states that: “A trustee shall diversify the investments of the
truét unless the trustee reasonably determines that, because of special circumstances,

the purposes of the trust are better served without diversifying.” The Comments to the

2! RSA 564-B:9:901(b) states that the terms of the trust may expand, restrict, eliminate or alter the
Prudent Investor Rule, i.e. RSA 564-8:9,
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Prudent Investor Act? specify that a desire of the settlor to retain a family business may

be a special circumstance that would justify not diversifying a trust. See also In re

Pulitzer's Estate 139 Misc. 575 (NY 1931).
The court notes that in a recent article Professor Langbein himself suggests that
in certain circumstances maintaining a family business may be an appropriate reason

for nondiversification of trust assets and may not violate the “benefit-the-beneficiaries”

rule. Langbein, Burn the Rembrandt? Trust Law’s Limits on the Settlor's Power to

Direct Investments, 90 BU Law Review 375, 394 (2010).

Sam, Sr. built a size-able family business that was well-known iﬁ tﬁe community.
It had provided employment for all six of his children at some time, ahd provided regular
as well as si'g'niﬁcarit' income for them. The investment directors are given autﬁon’ty to
act as managers and dir'éct'ors- of the various oompanies.ahd buSineés entities. _Sém,
- Sr. specifically chose ﬁis oldest- and y-c';'nunges’c Sons to servic_é the business empire after
he himself would have no ability to do so. Sam, Sr. wanted the family business
cohtjn‘ue’d for the éd’ual béneﬁt of his children and their issue. The investment-dirE:ctors
have been extr'aordinarily faithful in fulfilling that desire i:)y their trust management and
investment. They have consistently made cont'emporaneo'us and equal transferé to the
six siblings’ trusts.

Maintaining' the family business constitutes a special circumstance exonerating
the investment directors from a duty to further diversify under RSA 564-B:9. The
investment directors have managed the trust assets to provide, at once, Eoth substantial

annual income and long-term growth for the current and future beneficiaries.

2 See National Conference of Commissioners on Uniform State Laws 2002, Comment to Uniform
Prudent Investor Act (“UPIA”), Section 3, Diversification. hitp:/fwww.nccusl.org. RSA 564-B:9-903 has the
exact language of UPIA, Section 3.
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The respondents and intervenors presented the expert testimony of Robert
Wexler to pdsit that the assets of the sibling sub-trusts are sufficiently diverse because
they incorporate a mix of commercial, retail, and residential real estate holdings. This
bolsters the court's determination that the ihvestment directors had notduty to further
diversify the trusts’ assets.

Ascerfainable Standard

The petitioners complain that, because of. the lack of diversity and liquidity of
assets or olther cause, the investment directors have failed to prﬁvide sufficient funds to
the trustee that she can adequately pr‘ovide for the beneficiaries’ education and
maintenance in health and reasonable comfort. Amended (Porhplaint Count 1c. In
Suppdrt,' _Trusfee Shelton .teStified.that. Betty’s needs are significant due to her house
construction and {:ur'nulativ(-:_' _Iitig'atidn costs. They have not demon.strated fhat the
beneficiaries of the EMT Trusts have a greater financial need than has been provided.
There was no evidence introduced showing that the beneficiaries have not and are not
receiving funding for their education, healfh and reasonable comfort. Betty owns é
beautiful home on Governor’s Island in Lake Winnipesaukee—also the Iégal residences
of her three adult children. Betty attends Har;sfard Divinity School, Christina is a
graduate of Georgetown University, Maggie is a graduate of Yale Unive_rsity and John
attends St. Andrew’s University in Scﬁtland. The petitioners have chosen to coné.ume _
enormous trust resources in funding this litigation, outlay neither related to education
nor maintenance in health and reasonable comfort.

The SAT, Sr. Trust permits the trustee to determine and distribute to the

beneficiaries resources “necessary for their education and maintenance in health and
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reasonable comfort.” Article FIFTH and SIXTH. By creating this trust, Sam, Sr. assured
that his children would not have immediate or unrestricted access to an inheritance.
The trust does not accommodate the trustee’s showering the beneficiaries with
extravagances, but instead limits distributions to funding that is necessary and related to
education, health and reasonable comfort.

" The EMT Trusts have consistently received sufficient cash on an annual basis to

reasonably meet their ascertainable distribution standards.

(3) Refusal to Meet with Trustee

The p‘etitioners.allege that the respondents breaehed their fiduciary duties by:
refusing to meet with the tr'Ustee unless a 'reléase was signed and financial information
about the beneﬁeiaﬁes was provided; refusing to cooperate with Trustee Shelton; an.d
seeking .her'remc)val as trustee in violaﬁon of the S.ettlemenf Agreement. Amended
Complaint Couhte 1f and 1g.

Ih late August and eerly September 2007, the perties were corresponding by
“email aﬁd fax in @n attempt to schedule a meeting requested by the petitioners. The
respondents agreed fo meet on three -po'ssible dates suggested by the petitionere,
September 7, 19 or 20, and a meeting was scheduled for the 20th. It was not until after
the September 7 “$2 million in 7 days letter” that the respondents, through their counse,
indicated that there would be no meeting enless a release and waiver were provided.
The respondents’ requests for a release, and later, financial information‘, were
precipitated by Sheiton’s demand for trust assets without so much as waiting for the

meeting the petitioners had sought.
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As "excluded fiduciaries” the investment directors have no right to determine the
amount or timing of distributions to the beneficiaries and no duty to review the trustee’s
distribution decisions. See RSA 564-B: 12-1202, 12-1204. Although the investment
directors may Mﬁnandal information from the beneficiaries, they have no right to
demand béneﬁCiaﬁes’ financial statements pr'ic}r to making distributions. In so far as
they continued to transfer cash in the customary course without receiving the requested
information, fﬁere was no breach of duty.

The trustee and the investment directors have an obligation to cooperate and
keep.the other informed about the administration of the trust. See RSA 564-B:7-703(j),
12-1202(a). The 'petition'er“s have ndt met their burden it_1 proving that the respt'jhdents
refused to. cooperate with the trustee. lﬁ Aug-ust and éarly 'Se'ptember 2007, the |
| petitioners were meeting with Iitigation'attornéys_ in Boston.- By September 16", prioi‘ tq |
the scheduled September 201 meeting with tﬁé respondents, the petiﬁoners were
drafting a c‘ompléint. Exhibit 2.224. Betty, through her attorney, proceeded to cahcel a |

September 28™ meeting with tﬁe-respondent's at Attorney Sklar’é office. The courtis
mindful that throughout th.e August and September 2007 timeframe the petitioners’
agenda was undisclosed—a bﬁy—out of the EMT Trust assets and the Tamposi
Company assets owned individually by Betty. Exhibits 2.55 and 2.96. In this regard,
the trustee herself acted toward the investment directors in a noncooperative fashion.
The fespondents’ request that Trustee Shelton be removed is aremedy sought by them |

in this litigation; it does not serve as its cause.
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(4) Sale of Tamposi LLC (Boston Red Sox)

It is asserted by the petitioners that the respondents breached their fiduciary
duties by: refusing to commit to the sale of Tamposi LLC; forcing the trustee to institute
and prosecute the Massachusetts litigation; and failing to distribute proceeds from the
sale 6f the EMT Trusts’ interests in Tamposi LLC. Amended Complaint Counts 1d, 1'e,
1h, 1i, 1i |

- The Settlement Agreemé nt continued the investment directors’ responsibility fof
the investment and manager‘n‘enf of Tamposi LLC. The decision how, when, or if to sell
the EMT Trusts’ interests in,fhe Boston Red Sox lay in tfue sole discretion bf the
investment dlire"pto'rs, t:onsist.ent with their duty to act in good faith, in acoordance with
the térms of the trust, and irlr-f'he interests of the beﬁeﬁciaries. See RSA 564-B:12-
1202(a). The rés‘pondénté actéd'in gdod faith in selling the trusts’ interests in 2008.
They sold the shares, in avoidance of the put-and at a price per share highef than ény
previous seller, not because of the litigation but because of their determination of how.
~ - and when to sell, and their negotiating acumen. In so doing, the court apprehends no

- violation of duty. | |

The trustee, an “exéluded fiduciary” as to investments, did not have the authority
to force the investmgnt directdrs to sell a specific asset, i.e. the Boston Red Sox. |

The petitioners charge that the respondents’ failure to immediately distribute the
proceeds from the sale of the shares constitutes another breach of fiduciary duty. The
facts giving rise to this allegation occurred more than six months after the petitioners
filed the complaints in Massachusetts and New Hampshire. The parties were engaged

in contentious litigation at the time of the sale of the Boston Red Sox shares. Initially,

38



the petitionefs complained of the respondents’ apprehended reluctance to distribute the
proceeds in May 2008, prior to the actual sale. Petitioners’ Motion for Order Directing
| Respondents to Make Disbursements, Index # 44. This n‘iotion was discussed at a
hearing held on May 29, 2008, at which the petitioners requésted an additional fourteen
days to cénsider whether to present the motion for a ruling. The court granted the
petitioners’ request from the bench and in its order stated that upon failure of the
pétitioners to r;espdnd by June 12, 2008, the motion wbuid be denied. Orders on
Motions, Index # 82, 8/1 1/2008. The petitioners did not request the hearing until after
June 17, 2008. Orders, Index-;‘aE 99, 10/22/2008. The motion was entertained along with |
several others at a two-day hearing on November 6 and 14, 2008. Furthermore, in early
June 2008, Betty's husband, Ted, submitted a motion to this court requesting that it bar
- distribution of the Red ;Sok sale proceeds to Betty. Motion to Intervene and Freeze - |
Funds, Index # 60. .Th'e 'c'ou.rt'deniéd leave to intervene and, inl ruling on a later Motion
for Reconsideration, rioted that it had been infd}med that the superior céurt had issued
an order resfrainin'g the t:_uste’e from distributing the proceeds in t_he course of the
“divorce proceedings. Order, Indéx # 97, 10/14/2008, and Order on Motion to
Reconsider, Index # 107, 11/4/2008. After the November 6 and 14 hearing, this court
issued an order directing the respondents to distribute proceeds from the sale of the
Boston Red Sox, conditioned on the petitioners’ securing relief from the temporary
restraining order issued by the superior court. Orders, Index # 114, 12/3/2008. The
respondents distributed the sale proceeds to the EMT Trusts in December 2008.
Given that pleadings regarding the distribution of the Red Sox sale proceeds

were being considered simultaneously in three courts involving petitioners, respondents,
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and petitioner’s husEand, the court finds that the respondents acted reasonably in
awaiting orders prior to distributing funds to the EMT Trusts. The court finds that some
delay in resolving this issue was caused. by th"e petitioners” initial decision not to seek a
ruling on its Motion for Order Directing Respondents to Make Disbursements and their
tardiness in requesting that the matter be heard. The court finds that the respondents
rdid not breach their fiduciary duty in distributing thé proceeds from the sale of the

Boston Red Sox interest.

(5) Failure to Resign as Investment Directors

Breach of their fiduciary duty is qlaimed ow_ing to the r'eépc')ndents’ failure to
 resign as investment directors over Tamposi LLC. Amended Complaint Count 1 k. The
Settlement Agree'rrien_t (Exhibit 1.3 p. 3-5) calléd for Sam, Jr and .St'eve‘ to resign as

' invesffneﬁt directors o\rerfhe EMT Trusts’ ihtérests in Tamﬁosi‘ LLC “upon aﬁd to the
exteﬁt of the sale, liquidation, or conversion of éach trust asset to cash.” The pniY-asset :
of Tarn_posi'LLC,'the farhily’s b_Wnership interest in the Boston Red Sox, was so-ld fn May |
2008.- The proceéds were distributed to Trustee She_lton in December 2008. See
Exhibit 11.196 ('p.l4). Whethef Sém_, Jr. and Steve provided the petitioners with any
notice of their resignation as investment directors is immaterial. After distribution of the
asset, the investment directors had no authority to control the asset for investment, nor
any responsibility for its distribution to the beneﬁf:iaries. The in vestrhént directors |
effectively resigned their authority as to the EMT Trusts interests in Tamposi LLC as of

the date of distribution of the proceeds to the trustee.
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(6) Misappropriating Ownership Benefits in Red Sox

The petitioners maintain that the respondents b'reabhed their duty of fair dealing
by misrepresenting the nature of the ownership benefits in the Boston Red Sox and
misappropriating the ownership benefits for their own personél use. Amended
Complaint Counts 1land 1m. The petitioners dig:ll not present any evidence to support
these allegations. Accordingly, the court does not s; find or rule.

(7) Payment of Attorneys’ Fees and Making Distributions

Another proffered breach of fiduciary duty is attributed to the claimed
respondents’ withhblding of distributions to coérce the petitioners in%o waiving claims
against them and by éns’u ring payment of their own éttor’ney's fees, while refusing to
prdvide distributions from which.their own attorneys’ fees and litigation expenses might .
be paid. Amende'd Complaint 'Co-uﬁts 1n and 1o.

During this litigation the respondents have distributed substantial money to the
EMT Trusts, and the other sibling sub-trusts, for the Benefit of theirl respective
beneficiaries. They hav‘é'not made any fé’wer distributions to fhe EMT Trusts than any
other sibling s.ub—trust; and they have not withheld distributioné th!ey were legally

obligated to make.

“The general rule in this State is that each party to a lawsuit is reéponsible for

payment of his or her own lawyer’s bill.” Adams v. Bradshaw, 135 N.H. 7, 16, (1991),
cert. denied, 503 U.S. 960, 112 S.Ct. 1560, 118 L.Ed.2d 208 (1992). The court has
statutory authority to award attorneys’ fees in a judicial proceeding involving the

administration of a trust pursuant to RSA 564-B:10-1004. That said, there is no
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statutory or other requirement that has been asserted by the petitioners obligating the
respondents to fund payment of the petitioners’ attorneys’ fees and litigation expenses.

(8) Actfng in Their Own Self-Interests

Breach of another fiduciary duty is alieged in the petitioners’ amended comp[aint
by reason of the respondent’s purported actions in serving their own self-interests, as
well as those of their immediate families, rather than the interests of the EMT Trusts’ .
beneficiaries. Amended Coﬁplaint C0unt 1p. See RSA 564-B:8-802; 8-803. More
‘ spéciﬁc‘ally, they insist that the investment Qirectors allowed family members to utilize

varicus business benefits, real estate and office clerical services _at a reduced rate while
ché'rging the petitioné'rs' excesé_ive fees for these same services. The ﬁet'itioners
providéd ev'ide.nce that Saliy obtained services from Témposi bompan& pérsoh'nel, in |
‘that Jeff Knight contacted Trustee Gerald Prunier on her behalf (Exhibit 11.190), and a
staff person typed a letter for her on Tamposil stationery (Exhibit :_1 1.194). But there ﬁas
nd evidende,that these actions Wém specifically authorized by the invéstment directors
or Cc-)_nferred benefit on them of their immediéte fanﬁilieé_. The investment directors have

not violated their duty of loyalty or their duty of impartiality to the beneficiaries bf the

EMT Trusts as averred.

(9) Engaging in a Course of Conduct Marked by Hostility

Itis alleged that the respondents have breached their fiduciary duty in “engaging
in a course of conduct marked by hostility over a period of years against the petitioners
and the beneficiaries of the EMT Trusts, condu.ct which demonstrates their inability,
unwillingness and unfitness to discharge their fiduciary duties...” Amended Complaint

Count 1q. This litigation is limited to claims that arose subsequent to the November
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2006 Settlement Agreement. Petitioners instituted this litigation in October 2007.
Accordingly, their claim that there has been hostility over a period of years is both
exaggerated and meritless. Although the parties have engaged in contentious litigation,
that alone does not constitute a breach of fiduciary duty; meanwhile the investment |
directors have continued to appropriately manage and invest the EMT Trust assets.

(10) Wasting Trust Assets

The petitioners ask the court to rule that the respondents breached a duty by
wasting resources of the EMT Trusts and other 'famposi Cbmpany asséts owned by
Betty for needless attorneys’ fees, accoun{ants’ fees and other expenses. Amended
Compla'inlt Co'un't 1r. The court ruled in an Order on Motion for Partial Summary
Judgme'_nt that it does not have ju risdictio‘n to hear claims pertaining to other Tamposi
Company asset's. OWned ih‘dividua”y by Betty. Index#354. The case before this court
has been exceedingly litigious. The parties have submitted a plethora of repetitive
mdtions, responses and supportive exhib'its._ This will certainly be taken into account in
addressing any award of at'tor.heys’ fees and costs. It was the peti;cioner_s, ﬁot the
res;;ondents, who fiIe'd-this litigation in Masséchusett's and New Haﬁﬁpshire, causing' the
very expenditure on attorney’s fees and other litigation costs of which the petitioners
complain. They have not, on their proof, established that the respondents breached
their duty by asserting their defense.

B. /n terrorem Clause

The respondents have requested that the court find that this litigation was

brought in violation of Article FOURTEENTH of the Trust, the “in ferrorem” clause.

Article FOURTEENTH specifies that:
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If any person shall at any time commence or join in the prosecution of any
proceedings in any court or tribunal...to have ... this trust ... set aside or
declared invalid or to contest any or all of the provisions lncluded in ...this
trust...or to cause or to induce any other person to do so, then and in that event
such person shall thereupon forfeit any and all right, title and interest in or to any
portion of this trust, and this trust shall be distributed in the same manner as
would have occurred had such person died prior to the date of execution of this
trust.

Article FOURTEENTH further says that:
Nothing contained in this Article, however, shall preclude any beneficiary from

enforcing, by I|t|gat|on or otherwise,...the trustee's duties under this or any other
trust. -

Both the petitioners and the respondents earlier raised ép'plication of Article
IFOURTEENTH as an issue in pre-trial motions. The court deferred requested ruhng '
untll all evidence had been submitted. | -

- New Hampshire has long held that “[t]he general rule is well ésfablished that a |
beneficiary who contests the will will forfeit [her] share in aCcordénce with a pfovision in _
the will therefor (sic).” C.f. Burfman v Butman 97 N.H. 254, 257 (1952) “Where the
intention of the tes'tator_'ié clear and no question: of public policy is involved eithe;r in the
nature of the provision attached or the wéy the will. came in to being, effect will be given
tosuch a nol-co'ntes't clause....” Id. at 259. Furthermore, “probalSIy no juriédiction has
stood more éteadfastly for giving effect to the intention of the testator rather than to
arbitrary rules of law than New Hampshire.” |d. at 2'58.. Ina prévious order, this court
found that an in terrorem clause is a valid provision for inclusion in a trust instrument.
Order on Petitioners’ Motion for Partial Summary Judgment on Applicability of In
Terrorem Clause, Index # 160. |

Thel provisions of the SAT, Sr. Trust, as amended, specified that Sam, Jr. and

Steve would, throughout their lives, be responsible for managing investment of the trust
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assets. Given that Sam, Sr. did not name successor investment directors to his sons,
his clear intent was that only they would fill that role. This intention was also voiced to
his children at a family meeting in 1994. Befty knew, or should have known, of her
father’s intent by her presence at this meeting and subsequent meeting with Attorney
Alan Reische. Her testimony of having no recollection of being told about and
discussing her father’s trust and éstate plan at that time provokes sentiment going
beyond mere disbelief, Sam, Sr. intended for Sam, Jr. and Steve to continue the family
| business of investment in real estate, even if it might otherwise be considered
imprudeﬁt. He wéﬁ_ted'his children freated _é:quélly and for trust assets to be available
for m'ult'iple gener;atio'né of his issue. a | |
| Betty 'brought this action in October 2007, only eith months after her

concu rrénce with entry of aﬁ order épproving trust mod'rﬁcation in accordance with the
Settlement Agreement Ith-a"t the family had negotiated after éeveral years of dissension.
Betty herself testified that she understood the Settlemenf Agreement and believed it to
‘be fair when it was reached; yet she began searching for I'rtigafion attorneys within six
months after court approval. In the prior litigation, Betty's_ought removal of Her brothers
as investment directors, request for relief she presently repeats;

This action contgsts several provisions of the trust including, among others: the
role of the investmeﬁt directors (Article TENTH-B); authority of investment directors to
retain assets in common with other sibling trusts (Article TENTH); and their right to
retain substantial trust assets as or in real estate (Article TENTH-A). The court finds

that in bringing and prosecuting this litigation the petitioners have acted in bad faith.
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The petitioners strive to undermine and eliminate the role of the investment
directors as described in the SAT, Sr. Trust. The court has found that the investment
directors did not breach their fiduciary duties to the petitioners, have served
appropriately and have very successfully managed and invested the trust assets. The
actions of the petitioners in bringing this matter to court were motivated by a desire to
force a buy-out of Betty's share of the trust and non-trust assets. Many of petitioners’
actions strike the court as contrived in a calculated endeavor to manufacfuré evidence

for purposes of Iliﬁg'atioh. Had Trustee Shelton concentrated on taking possession of
the assets, she would have had sufficient funds to pay Maggie’s tuition.- Had Trustee
Shelton actually been driven to take over as trustee, she wou]d have ag‘reed to an initial
meeting i’nlp'erson with one _investmehtdi-rector and tele;’:honically:with the other, who

| had suffered a balck iﬁjUry and lived in Florida. Had Trusfee_Shelton truly sought to
cooperate witﬁ the .inVESfr'n'ént directors, she would not have sent the $2 million in 7
days -let_ter” without first ev’aluat.ing what assets the trusts held or how feasible fulfillment
- of her réquest would be Nor would she have sent such a letter only nine days after
introducing hersélf to the investment directors and prior to evaluaﬂﬁg the other assets of
the beneficiaries. -

Article TENTH-A of the trust instrument specifically aliows the investment
directors to hold trust assets in real estate interests, creating the iliquidity of which the
petitioners complain. Article TENTH of the trust instrument specifically aliows the
sibling sub-trusts td be combined or commingled in undivided proportionate interests.
These provisions are entirely consistent with Sam, Sr.’s wish to benefit each of his

children and their issue as integrated parts of the larger whole. The court has found

46



that these provisions do not violate any statute or public policy. The petitioners have
contested them.

The remedies sought by the petitioners, including the removal of the investment
directors and the “decoupling” kor buy-out) of the EMT Trusts from the other trust
assets, are yet other manifestation of their wish to challenge provisions of the SAT, Sr.
Trust. The betitioners' Complaint pridr to amendment, sought liquidation of the Tamposi

‘Companies. It was clearly the intent of Sam, Sr. in devising his trust strategy, that the
Tamposi famlly business would continue; that the trust assets would be managed and |
invested together; that his children would be treated equally and that family bonds
would be cemented as a result. In thl_s litigation, the petitioners aspire to defeat these

| purposes by disengaging the interests of Betty and her issue from the train, ﬁking it
down an indeper;dent track where they will be free to choose tﬁe'ir own déstinatiﬁh and
route for getting there. | |

The petitioners contend that this litigation concerns breaches of fiduciary duty by

the investment directors, affording a free pass from the in terrorem clause’s bite under

~ Afticle FOURTEENTH. The co_urt finds this argument unpersuasive. As éarly as
August 2007, petitioners planned to bring litigation concerning the trust, prior to most or
all of the breaches élleged in the petition and even prior to introducing the new trustee
to the investment directors or the former trustee.

The in terrorem clause has been vioiatéd. The court finds and rules that
Elizabeth M. Tamposi has forfeited her right, title and interest in the trust. See

Tumminello v Bolten 873 N.Y.S. 2d 731, 732, 59 A.D.3d 727, 728 (NY 2009) (forfeiture

of interest in trust by challenging its validity in guardianship proceeding); Ackerman v
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Genevieve Ackerman Family Trust 908 A.2d 1200, 1204 (DC 2006) (“no contest”

provision in trust ruled valid and enforceable', and lawsuit to “reform” deemed clear trust
violation).'

Had the petitioners sincerely believed that the trustee had power_to require
liquidation of trhst assets and demand distributions, they would have petitioned the
court for instructions pursuant to RSA 564—8:2-201(c),'with enhanced, if n.ot avoidant,
prospect of not implicating the in terrorem clause. The petitioners, one of whom is

herself an attorney, would have been better advised to vet any. genuine concern they

_. had through the less contentious proé&eding for an instructidn. See é.q'. In re Pack
Monadnock 147 N.H. 419 (2002).

The respondents' “Motian to Forfeit Elizébeth M. Témposi GST Trust and the
'--Elizallaeth M. Ta’m'ﬁoSi :Tru'st,' Bbth‘ Created Und'ér the Samuel A. ITamposi, Sr. 1992
Trust,l and the Eﬁiabe‘th M. Tém'pc')si Trust C-}reated Under the Samuel A. Tambosi, Sr.
1994 Irrevocable Trust, and to Dist_ri'bute All Assets Remaining in 'the'Tr\usts in the Saﬁe
Manner as if Elizabeth M, Tamposi Had Died Prior to Execution of the Trusts” is
granted consistent with o_ﬂjler orders hefein.

Having so ruled, the court proceeds to a consideration of the timing of the
forfeiture of Betty’s interest in the EMT Trusts. The wording of Article FOURTEENTH
suggests that forfeiture would occur at the time that a person commenced or joined in
prqoeedings to oppose the trust or any provision of the trust. Atticle .FOURTEENTE‘-!
states that “if any person shall ...commence ...proceedings in any court.. .fhen and in
tﬁat event such person ...shall thereupon forfeit....” (Emphasis added). The parties

have provided substantial evidence that Betty and Trustee Shelton have used
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considerable assets from the EMT Trusts to fund this litigation against the investment
directors. The courtfinds it is contrary to the intent of SAT, Sr. to allow a beneficiary to
use the assets of the trust in order to violate the in terrorem clause. Itfinds further that
Betty forfeits all her right, title and interest in the EMT Trusté as of the déte of filing the
original Complaint.

After review, the court will order the petitioners fo pay reasonable attorneys’ fees
and reasonable costs..inqurr'ed by the respondents-and intervenors in defending this
action. It takes no pOSitibh on'thé litigation between the parties in Massachusetts and
will notlorder payment of attorneys' fees and costs incurred by either party in that action.

The court ha's_ca‘refully considered all _c_:_laims'prior to coming to the conclusion
 that the in tenlroréfn clause has been violated. It is compelled by the stated inteht of the
settior to_ ﬁrder-the‘ fc'arfeiflure of Betty's interest. A]thougﬁ' not uncommon in wills, an in
terrorem clause is not freﬁue‘nﬂy seenin a frust document and Sarﬁ, Sr. included it
knolwingly. As of 1994, thé sik siblings were aware of the in terrorem clause. Betty
specifically knew hef risk of forfeiture in filing this litigation, given the prior litigation and
the earlier order on “Petitioner's Motion for PartiaI-S.umr-ﬁary Judgment on Applicabilitg _
of In Te:rorerh Clause.” Index # 160. Furtﬁennore, if history is any indication of fhe
future, Betty will not cease litigating as long as her interests are tethered to that of her
brothers and other siblings; and her assets remain in the Tamposi Companies.

C. Motion to Remove frustee Julie Shel’ton
The respondents seek to disqualify Julie Shelton as trustee of the EMT Trusts,
alleging that she is incompetent and has wasted trust assets by bringing this litigation.

The petitioners, Betty and Shelton', object. Maggie Goodlander and Christina
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Goodlander, beneficiaries of the EMT Trusts, testified at the final hearing and informed
the court that they did not wish for Julie Shelton to be removed as trustee.

RSA 564-B:7-706 (a) states that, “The settlor, a co-trustee, or a beneficiary may
request the court t6 remove a trustee, or a trustee may be removed by the court on its
own initiative.” The respondents are not setilors or beneficiaries of the EMT Trusts.
They are co-fiduciaries, but their role in the EMT Trusts is limited to investment and
management.of the trust assets. They have not been aggrieved by the distribution
decisions of Trustee Shelfon. The court finds that th.ey are not in a position to. request

; fer’nova[ of the trustee over the objection of the beneﬁdarieé. |

RSA 564-5:7—706 p'rlovides that the court itself may remove a trustee on its own’ |
initiativlqe. Trustee Sheiton testified at the finai hearing, and the court ﬁndé as credible,
that she relubténtly agreed to serve as {rustee because Bétty was unable to procure an

institutional trustee. Shelfon does not wish to continue serving as frustee for the long-
term. She hadjno prior experience in trust administration, and accepted her
appointment as trustee without thoroughly evaluating the trust terms or understanding
her role or duties. | |
Trustee Shelton is a party to this litigation. She co.lluded'with Betty in creating
controversy with the investment directors.- She participated with Betty in inten_xiewfng
and hiring litigation counsel to bring this lawsuit. This litigation has cost millions of
dollars in fees for the attorneys, trustees, experts and other litigation costs and
expenses. Shelton did not conduct an appropriate cost/benefit analysis prior to bringing
this litigation, as suggested by her own expert, John Langbein. She did not request

transfer of assets to her until six weeks after she was named as trustee. She testified
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that Iitig'ation costs were so massive that there were insufficient funds in the EMT Trusts
to provide for Christina, Maggie and John. Shelton violated her duty as trustee to
control and protect trust assets, and her duty to invest and manage trust assets with
reasonable care, skill, and caution. RSA 564-B: 8-809, 9-902. The court finds that
bringing this litigation was to benefit one trust beneficiary, i.e. Betty, and afforded little or
no value to the other beneficiaries including, and most especially, the unborn. Trustee
Shelton violated her duty of impartia]ity to the beneficiaries. RSA 564-B:8-803.
| The court finds that Trustee Shelton has persistently failed to administer the trust
éppropriatély and reﬁoval of Trustee Shelton will best serve the interest of the
" beneficiaries. RSA-564-B:7-706. The court further finds that Trustee Shelton is entitled
| ."[o reés'onable éompenSétibn as trUstee, commensurate with her duties of-trustl _
administration. RSA 564-B:7-708. -
D. Other Rulings |
The court a'ppointed a guardian ad litem to represent the interesf of the
benéﬁciaries and/of remainderpei'sor.ls of the EMT Trusts th’o are under disabiﬁty or |
presehtly not ascertainable. Orders., Index #114. The guardian and litem commented
that she had no specific evjd ence that the investment directors in any way breached
~ their fiduciary duty between November 2006 and August 2007. Report of the Guardian
ad Litem, p.12, Index 377. She further commented that there was a significant level of
distrust betweén the parties and that “the largest single drain on fhe assets of each of
the individual sub-Trusts...has been, and foreseeably could be, the expenses of the
litigation that now span nearly a decade....” Report, p. 35. Additionally, the guardian ad

litem stated that:
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it is more likely than not that iitigation in one form or another will continue unless
or until it is possible to sever the EMT interests, both Trust bound and not, from
the interests of the other family members. in sum, one living beneficiary of the
Samuel A Tamposi, Sr. Revocable Trust of 1992 is not content to have her
financial future tied to those of her siblings and, in particular, to the Investment
Directorship of her two brothers. Report, p. 36.

In her report and testimony, the guardian ad litem suggests that a court order
decoupling Elizabeth’s interests from that of the rest of the Tamposi family as Tamposi
- real estate asseté arelliquidate'd wquld minimize further litigation costs and preserve
assets for the unborn issue who are EMT Trust beneficiaries. The court has found that
the re'spondénts’ did not b'r_each -'th‘eir fiduciary duties. That being the case there is no
premise forllégal or equitable relief t:Oﬂsiéte_nt with her recommendation.

'T_he parties have submitted one thousand thilrty five (1035) feqUests for ﬁhdings

of fact and r'ulings of law which the court determines is an unreasonable number. See

Clinicai Lab Products, Inc. v. Martina, 121 N.H. 989, 991 (1 981 ), (when number of
requests is unreasonable, the court may rely upon its narrative findings of essential

facts and ignore the requests):

IV. ORDERS
1. By bri.nging this action, Elizabeth M. Tamposi has violated the “in terrorem”
clause of fhe Samuel A. Tamposi, Sr. 1992 Trust and thereby forfeits all of her |
right, title and intérest in or under the Samuel A. Tamposi, Sr. 1992 Trust, as
amended by the settlor and as modified by the parties’ Settlement Agreement.
2. Elizabeth Tamposi shall not receive distributions from the Elizabeth M. Tamposi-

Non-exempt Trust or the Elizabeth M. Tamposi GST Exempt Trust. Elizabeth
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Tampesi shall reimburse the trusts for any distributions received by her,
retroactive to the.date of filing the original Complaint.

. Julie Shelton is removed as trustee of the Elizabeth M. Tamposi Trusts.

. Julie Shelton shall provide the court with an accounting of the compensation she
has received as trustee within 30 days after the date of the nofice of this order for
the court to determine the reasonableness of this compeneation.

. ;The children of Elizabeth M. Tamposi may choose, by majority vote, a successor
tmetee by the date\of the remeval of Trustee Julie Shelton.

. If the children of Elizabeth M. Tamposi have not chosen a successor trustee by
the date of the .rerﬁova[ ef Trustee Julie Shelton, subject to his acceptance; the
couirt will 'eppoint Atterney Eugene Van Loan as trustee of the trusts for the |
benefit of Elizabeth M. Tafnposf until such time as a successor trustee is named
by a majority of the beneficiaties.

. Petitioners’ requiest for attorneys’ fees and costs is denied.

| . After reeeipt' of further filings, the court will make a determinatioﬁ of aﬁorneye'
fees and costs of the respondents and intervenors chargeable to and payable by
the peti.tioners. | |

. Respondents and intervenors shall provide summaries of their reasonable costs
ane attorneY’s fees within thirty (30) days of the notice of this order. Petitioners
shall have ten (10) days thereafter to submit their objections.

10. Motions for reconsideration or notices of appeel shall not stay the application of

this order. Probate Court Rule 59-A.
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11. The parties’ requested findings of fact and rulings of [aw are granted so far as
consistent with the above order. Any of the parties’ requests for findings and
rulings inconsistent with the order, either expressly or by necessary implication, are

hereby denied or determined otherwise to be unnecessary in Iight of the court’s

decision.

&1% o

Date * Gary R. Cassavechia, Judge
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